
 London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Public Services Reform Policy and 
Accountability Committee 

 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday, 7 April 2021 at 6.30 pm 
 

This meeting will be held remotely – you can watch live on YouTube: 
youtu.be/Fm5ZffRyVTI  

 

 
MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Rowan Ree (Chair) 
Councillor Christabel Cooper 
Councillor Guy Vincent 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum 
 

Councillor Dominic Stanton 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Head of Governance 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel: 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 

Date Issued: 26 March 2021 

https://youtu.be/Fm5ZffRyVTI
http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Public Services Reform Policy and Accountability 
Committee Agenda 

 
7 April 2021 

 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 A roll call will be carried out to confirm attendance and members will 
have the opportunity to declare any interests. 
 
If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give 
evidence or answer questions about the matter.  The Councillor must 
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES  4 - 16 

 To approve the minutes of the previous two meetings held on 16 
November 2020 and 28 January 2021 (Joint Budget Meeting). 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 This meeting is being held remotely. If you would like to ask a question 
at the meeting about any of the items on the agenda please contact: 
david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
You can watch the meeting live on YouTube: youtu.be/Fm5ZffRyVTI 
 

 

mailto:david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk
https://youtu.be/Fm5ZffRyVTI


 

5.   EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION MATTERS IN H&F  17 - 28 

 This report updates the committee on corporate initiatives as part of 
ensuring that Equality, Diversity and Inclusion is at the core of services 
to residents. 
 

 

6.   WORKFORCE EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION  29 - 46 

 This report updates the committee on the focused and fast paced 
programme of work to enliven our Equality, Diversity & Inclusion goals. 
 

 

7.   WORKFORCE EFFICIENCY: REDUCING AGENCY SPEND  47 - 55 

 This report provides an update on activity being undertaken to reduce 
agency spend across the council. 
 

 

8.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 The next meeting is scheduled for 27 July 2021. 
 

 

 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

. 
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Public Services Reform 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
Minutes 

 

Monday 16 November 2020 
 

 

 
PRESENT 
 
Committee members: Councillors Rowan Ree (Chair), Christabel Cooper, 
Guy Vincent, Zarar Qayyum and Dominic Stanton 
 
Other Councillors: 
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform 
 
Officers: 
Rhian Davies (Director of Resources) 
Emily Hill (Director of Finance) 
Dawn Aunger (AD Transformation, Talent and Inclusion) 
Martin Calleja (Assistant Director, Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) 
Matthew Sales (AD Programmes and Assurance) 
Mary Lamont (Strategic Head of People and Talent) 
David Abbott (Head of Governance) 
 
NOTE: This meeting was held remotely 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 
 

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair led a roll call of members to confirm attendance, which is listed above. 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

3. MINUTES  
 
Councillor Guy Vincent asked how officers could be confident in the projected 
savings for phase two of the programme when detailed modelling work hadn’t been 
completed. Martin Calleja (Assistant Director, Efficiency and Zero-Based Budgeting) 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

clarified that the modelling was being done in two phases. High level modelling had 
been completed for the whole project, then there was detailed modelling for each 
phase. The high-level modelling had been validated for the initial phase so officers 
were confident it was accurate. A full business case had gone to Cabinet in October 
and there was more detail in that paper. 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton asked officers to circulate the revised schedule to the 
committee. 

ACTION: Martin Calleja 
 
RESOLVED 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 2nd of September 2020 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
 
 

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
No public questions were received. 
 
 

5. H&F WAY PROGRESS REPORT  
 
Mary Lamont (Strategic Head of People and Talent) presented the report on the H&F 
Way – the Council’s innovative internal culture change programme, where staff work 
together to shape cultural change and improvement.  
 
The Chair asked what metrics were being measured for this work. Dawn Aunger (AD 
Transformation, Talent and Inclusion) said the team were starting with metrics like 
sickness absence and number of appraisals completed but they wanted to move 
towards using employee engagement as an overarching measure. Organisations 
that demonstrated high levels of employee engagement were high performing, 
showed strong levels of resilience, low levels of sickness, and were better at 
retaining talent. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper noted that the organisation had reported an 
engagement score of 53 percent in the 2018 survey but had not measured it since. 
Mary Lamont said another survey was planned in December 2020 and staff 
sentiment surveys had been carried out in between to get a sense of staff wellbeing. 
 
Councillor Cooper commented that two years seemed a long time to wait before 
measuring the core KPI. Mary Lamont said in future there would be smaller, more 
regular ‘temperature checks’ to get regular feedback. 
 
Dawn Aunger agreed that it wasn’t effective to only ask these questions every two 
years. The goal was to have a more agile and responsive survey with a small core 
number of questions to go out monthly or quarterly. In 2020 the focus had been on 
wellbeing due to the pandemic. 
 
The Chair asked which companies did this well. Dawn Aunger said they had been 
taking inspiration from the top blue-chip companies but in the public sector Aberdeen 

Page 5



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

Council were known to be doing good work and best practices were shared at the 
Pan-London Heads of HR Group on a weekly basis. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent said, in his experience, the quickest way to improve 
engagement was to talk to people and set targets. Section four of the report showed 
some very negative feedback on performance management and appraisals. He 
asked if officers knew how well the appraisal system was working across the 
Council. 
 
Mary Lamont noted that an ‘appraisal lite’ had been introduced as an interim 
measure during the pandemic and managers were encouraged to have quality 
conversations about wellbeing with their staff. In that time an H&F Way working 
group had been developing a new and improved appraisal process. She added that 
the Council sees the value of one-to-ones and communication between staff and 
managers had improved significantly. 
 
Councillor Vincent asked how many people used the appraisal lite and asked what 
was wrong with the old system. Mary Lamont said indicative figures could be 
provided after the meeting which had been collated via short surveys which had 
been undertaken following the launch of appraisal lite.  

ACTION: Mary Lamont 
 
Dawn Aunger added that the team wanted an appraisal process that was easy to 
use and encouraged engagement. Councillor Vincent requested a report on the new 
appraisal process for a future meeting. 

ACTION: Dawn Aunger / Mary Lamont 
 
The Chair asked if working from home had changed the way the organisation 
operated and if working from home was going to continue, should the starting point 
of the H&F Way programme be adjusted to this new reality. 
 
Mary Lamont said there had been a major shift with a significant number of the 
organisation currently working from home. Staff sentiment surveys had been sent out 
during the pandemic to get feedback and understand where there were issues. Work 
had been done on meeting people’s requirements while they worked from home – 
officers had launched new display screen equipment (DSE) assessments and online 
learning modules to support staff. 
 
The Chair asked if equipment was being provided to staff with special work 
requirements or difficult home working environments. Dawn Aunger said the Council 
had created the ‘WOW’ (Ways of Working) Guide which was full of information for 
staff on how to work effectively at home and what support was available. A second 
version of the guide was just about to launch. Officers had worked with health and 
safety colleagues, unions, and staff volunteers on the offer for staff to ensure they 
were provided with the right equipment and support. 
 
The Chair summed up the item and asked for a progress report to a future meeting 
that focused on metrics and the new appraisal process. 
 
RESOLVED 

Page 6



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

The committee noted the report. 
 

6. WORKFORCE EFFICIENCY - REDUCING AGENCY SPEND  
 
The report on reducing agency spend was presented for information. 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent, in reference to paragraph 6, asked how much money the 
Council would save by putting agency staff on the payroll. Mary Lamont (Strategic 
Head of People and Talent) said she could provide that information after the 
meeting. 

ACTION: Mary Lamont 
 
Councillor Guy Vincent said the target of £12.5m seemed optimistic and asked what 
would  happen if the target was missed by a significant amount. Mary Lamont said 
officers had looked carefully at agency usage and had secured commitments on exit 
dates. They were already seeing reductions in costs. Dawn Aunger noted that it was 
difficult to answer how much the Council saved as it depended on the type of the 
role, the nature of the role, the length of contract etc. Some agency staff could be 
cheaper and some more expensive. Transactional roles could be quite expensive – 
but for short project work agency staff could be more cost efficient. 
 
Councillor Vincent asked what the consequences were for managers that over-relied 
on agency staff. Mary Lamont said that would impact directly on service budgets and 
that here was no separate budget for agency staff. 
 
The Chair noted that Covid-19 had had a major impact on the Council and asked if 
officers were still confident of meeting the savings deadline. Dawn Aunger said they 
were currently on target  but that the target was always going to be a stretch and 
would be particularly challenging taking account of emerging issues associated with 
pandemic.  The projection provided reflected the commitments managers had 
provided. 
 
The Chair asked if there was a ‘red flag’ system for when services were taking on 
agency staff when it wasn’t necessary. Mary Lamont confirmed there was and that 
there were regular monthly  reviews of agency staffing. 
 
Councillor Christabel Cooper asked how the pandemic had impacted recruitment? 
Dawn Aunger said they were finding far more people in the market looking for work – 
and remote working had opened up new  opportunities to bring in talent. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum requested a departmental breakdown of agency spend – 
including level of seniority. Mary Lamont said she would circulate that information. 
 

ACTION: Mary Lamont 
 
Councillor Adam Connell (Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform) noted that 
the committee had challenged agency spend in the past and the paper showed that 
controls were in place and the Council had made progress. He invited the committee 
to revisit the subject at the end of the financial year. The Chair agreed. 
 

Page 7



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

RESOLVED 
That the committee noted the item and requested an update on progress at the end 
of the financial year. 
 
 

7. WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITIES  
 
Mary Lamont (Strategic Head of People and Talent) presented the report that 
provided an update on learning and development opportunities aimed at the H&F 
workforce. 
 
The Chair asked if there had been a change in take-up of training since people 
started working from home. Mary Lamont said there had been an increase in online 
learning. The Council had reinforced its  ‘learning from home’ online modules at the 
beginning of the pandemic and there were  regular updates published on a corporate 
basis of  ‘top training picks’. There was also good uptake of virtual learning through 
Teams. Events like the lunch time learns which were  better attended than in-person 
learning pre-pandemic. 
 
Councillor Zarar Qayyum asked how the Council was advertising apprenticeships to 
residents and how the budget of £250k compared to last year. Mary Lamont clarified 
that the figure of £250k was spend to date. She added that officers had been 
exploring different ways to engage residents, including creating a young people’s 
network and a recent promotional event (call to action) which had resulted in a sign 
up of over 100 residents. Further events were being planned throughout 2021. 
 
The Chair asked if officers were working with schools on this too. Mary Lamont said 
they were. 
 
The Chair asked if employees could take advantage of expensive training then leave 
for another job. Mary Lamont said there was a contractual arrangement in place with 
finance trainees but not in other areas. Dawn Aunger noted that the Council didn’t 
manage continuous professional development centrally so legal, finance and other 
departments had different systems in place. The Chair asked officers to ensure there 
were safeguards in place across the Council. 

ACTION: Mary Lamont 
 
Councillor Dominic Stanton noted that the report showed 33% of ‘Get Ahead’ 
recruitments were unsuccessful and asked why that was. Mary Lamont said she 
would take a look at the data and provide a breakdown. 

ACTION: Mary Lamont 
 
The Chair summed up the discussion and thanked officers for their work. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the committee noted the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The next meeting was scheduled for 19 January 2021. 
 

 
Meeting started: 6.30 pm 
Meeting ended: 8.10 pm 

 
 
Chair   

 
 
Contact officer: David Abbott 

Head of Governance 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776 672877 
 E-mail: david.abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

.  London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

Joint Finance, Commercial 
Revenue and Contracts; 

and Public Services 
Reform Policy & 

Accountability Committee  
Minutes 

 

Thursday 28 January 2021 
 

 

 
 
 

PRESENT 
 
Members of Finance and Commercial Revenue Policy and Accountability 
Committee (Finance Pac) 
 
Committee members: Councillors Helen Rowbottom (Co-Chair), Patricia Quigley, 
David Morton, Guy Vincent and Donald Johnson 
 
Co-opted members: Tony Boys (Community), Erik Hohenstein (Community), Chris 
Littmoden (Community) and Judith Worthy (Community) 
 
Public Services Reform Policy and Accountability Committee (PSRPAC) 
 
Committee members: Councillors Rowan Ree (Co-Chair), Christabel Cooper, Guy 
Vincent, Zarar Qayyum and Dominic Stanton 
 
Other councillors: Councillor Adam Connell 
 
Officers and guests: Tony Burton, Head of Finance (CHS and Education), 
Corporate Finance, Resources;  Prakash Daryanani, Head of Finance, Social Care; 
Christopher Harris, Emily Hill, Director of Finance, Resources; Andrew Lord, Head 
of strategic planning and monitoring; Corporate Finance, Resources; Cliff Parker, 
Assistant Director of Housing; Andre Mark, Finance Business Partner and 
Corporate Finance; Daniel Rochford, Head of Finance, Corporate Finance; and 
Kalsi Sukvinder, Head of Finance, Environment 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

Page 10



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

2. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair noted the attendance of members and no declarations of interest 
were reported.  
 

3. 2021 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 
Emily Hill provided an overview of the planned medium term financial strategy 
(MTFS) within the context of continued financial uncertainty regarding public 
expenditure.  Prior to Covid, there had been an indication that an uplift of 
4.5% in core spending power signalled a possible end to austerity.  However 
historic deep cuts had resulted in trying to deliver more services with less 
money.  Locally this reflected a need to balance demand led social care 
services within a restricted financial structure.  Council tax remained the third 
lowest nationally and significantly below the London average.  Council 
expenditure on social care equated to about half of the total expenditure of 
£86 million.  An inflationary increase of 4.1% reflected the fragility of the 
social care market and, within a tightening financial context, a deficit was 
expected this year with two thirds attributed to Covid.  A third lockdown had 
made it harder to deliver savings whilst supporting a Covid response. The 
allocated Covid grant had been received but not yet spent and held in grant 
for future years.  
 
Departmental budget proposals 
 
It was noted that for 2020/21 in terms of Covid implications, a fees and 
charges compensation scheme would partly fund council tax and business 
rate losses.  Local authorities would have to meet the first 5% followed by 75p 
in the pound there after.  The remainder would be met by the council and 
council tax losses would be spread over a three year period.  There had been 
a devasting impact on business rates reflecting the economic impact of Covid 
on local businesses and any shortfall in government funding would need to be 
met in reserves or from savings. There would be an increased budget gap in 
2021/22 and a reduced rate of business and household council tax collection 
was anticipated. Contingency funding for homeless had also been 
anticipated.  
 
It was important to recognise that financial uncertainty would continue. The 
increase in council tax reflected the government expectation to raise funds 
locally but the long term economic impact of Covid required further evaluation 
and linked to a corresponding reduction in local services.  The loss of the new 
homes grants as part of the national levelling up agenda redirecting funding 
away from urban areas represented a further reduction.  
 
Co-optee Tony Boys commented that despite the projections for economic 
recovery being cautious there was a possibility of a substantial recovery 
predicted for 2021.  He asked if this outcome had been including in the 
financial modelling and what the impact of a more positive recovery might 
look like in the MTFS.  Emily Hill explained that the MTFS took into account 
low interest rates which were likely to remain low even with recovery.  The 
social care market remained fragile and it was accepted that demand was set 

Page 11



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

to increase.  Any substantial recovery was not expected to impact and the 
MTFS also considered the impact of recovery on the short term support 
needed for families and there was no reliance on the revenue from business 
rates.  
 
Questions from the Committee 
 
With reference to the council’s Annual Report 2021/22 Tony Boys highlighted 
the £685 million secured from developers and asked what residents could 
expect in return for their council tax payments. Emily explained that more 
funding was available in growth or return on investment items, but this year 
was difficult and there were additional demands to consider in demand led 
services such as children’s service and social care.  Visible examples of 
council spending included wardens, CCTV, street cleaning and maintenance. 
There had been significant areas of community investment. In planning terms, 
section 106 funding had been negotiated by the Council, but this might be 
impacted by future planning reforms and developer contributions.  
 
Councillor Vincent welcomed the report and thanked officers for their 
presentation.  In terms of savings he asked if these might be achieved 
through job losses, what the extent of this might be and which areas of the 
council might they arise.  Emily Hill explained that this had been referenced in 
the MTFS in relation to staffing and productivity and included in the appendix 
detailing savings. Emily briefly outlined some of the restructuring that had 
been undertaken including within the finance teams and any vacant posts 
across the organisation had been removed.  Any further losses would be 
preceded by consultation, but potential job losses were not expected to be 
significant and redeployment support would be available to staff. 
 
Councillor Vincent asked if there had been any revenue generated through 
the commercialisation of services such as advertising. Emily Hill outlined a 
shift in focus, moving away from commercialisation within this year’s MTFS as 
given the impact of Covid. There was an increased focus on fees and charges 
and commercialisation would be limited to the planning service.  Advertising 
income was over £2 million and had not been impacted by Covid to date but 
profit shares would be limited.  There was a concern that when leases 
expired, they would not be re-let with lower revenue generated as a result.  It 
was confirmed that the 2021/22 outturn at month 6 projected a shortfall of 
£5.7 million, which would be mitigated on appeal and anticipated to achieve a 
significant reduction to £1 million.    

 
Councillor Ree probed the uncertainty around funding and reported that the 
PSRPAC had considered the impact of Covid expenditure and losses of 
£38.5 million. Emily Hill estimated that that the impact of Covid could be £43 
million impact, with £21 million on expenditure and a similar amount on losses 
but the majority will be funded by government. The government had provided 
the main, un-ringfenced grant in four tranches which were unpredictable, but 
it was possible that another that there would be another funding phase. There 
was little expectation that the government would fully fund the council’s Covid 
linked loss.  The first 5% would been met by the council, thereafter funding 
75p in the pound. There were specific Covid grants with money to fund 

Page 12



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

testing, but an outlay was needed to support this. This was about £1-3 million, 
and not the £30 million anticipated.   
 
Councillor Ree asked what the impact of Brexit had been and whether this 
had been considered in the final MTFS modelling. Emily Hill confirmed that 
there was an inflationary impact which would have been included but not 
specifically focused on Brexit.  There would be some higher costs for goods 
and services which could impacted by inflationary increases and this might 
mean relying on contingency planning.   
 
Co-optee Chris Littmoden commented on the clarity of papers provided and 
whether this could be improved for the next financial year and noted that the 
papers did not reference zero based budgeting which he felt would have been 
helpful to have included in the papers.  He welcomed the cost and trend 
analysis which afforded a clear financial picture of each of the departments 
and highlighted problem areas.  Referencing page 70, appendix 5, he 
highlighted the point that costs were now incorporated in resident services 
which were not easily identifiable.  This was essentially the customer services 
contact centre (moved in-house, with associated salary costs), and revenue 
and housing benefit teams.  It was agreed that further clarification would be 
provided as a follow up action.  Emily Hill also acknowledged that it would be 
helpful to consider the jargon and terminology used in the papers to improve 
the clarity of the information provided.  
 
Co-optee Erik Hohenstein sought further information about innovative and 
aspirational changes within social care service delivery with the introduction 
of artificial intelligence utilised in assisted technology touched on in the 
papers but not fully explored.  Similarly, there had been references made to 
the commercialisation of services and the anticipated uncertainty around 
advertising, both of which had also been briefly highlighted.  He was also 
keen to further explore the longer term role and responsibilities of the council 
in respect of Covid which in some cases, had been provided swiftly and 
constituted unplanned expenditure.  On a final point and in reference to Brexit 
he asked that if there were to be increases in services, to what extent was the 
exposure to pricing fluctuations, an issue that might occur in the third financial 
quarter.    
 
Prakash Daryanani clarified that in the context of social care, the innovations 
were focused on digitisation and not the commercialisation of services. 
Assisted technology was intended to improve the quality of life for residents 
and which would also include an expansion of the Careline service.  Assisted 
technology with artificial intelligence was very much in the early stages of 
planning but would afford residents greater independence, for example, using 
tablet devices to speak with social workers.   Emily Hill confirmed that zero 
based budget had offered significant insights and that a summary had been 
included in the papers but acknowledged that this could have been more 
explicit.  Members of the committees could be provided with information about 
the cost of resident services in more detail illustrated with examples of case 
studies and the figures included in contingency planning particularly in 
respect of the civic campus regeneration in terms of identified risks and 
opportunities.  There was consensus that this be an area of focus for the 

Page 13



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

Finance and Commercial Revenue PAC.  In terms of Covid, the focus was as 
much on revenue as on savings, but a prudent approach was required to 
increasing revenue.  The strategy to increase council tax indicated that this 
was also a budget that was focused on protecting the most vulnerable 
residents.  
  
Councillor Cooper referenced the reserves graph in the report which indicated 
a decline until 2023 and asked if this was due to the expected receipt of 
revenues from civic campus.  Emily Hill explained the move and leasing costs 
in transferring to Shortlands and clockworks had used a large portion of 
reserve to cover the leases.  The intention was to reconfigure the staff and 
customer interface and there would be a profit redistribution from the joint 
venture that would be used to fund the leases, facilitated by a clear break 
clause in the contracts to allow this.  It was acknowledged that Covid had 
delayed work on the civic campus but this was still on track to be delivered 
within the framework of the initial plan, although with some reprofiling.  Emily 
Hill confirmed that there was an expectation that some savings would be 
achieved in 2023.  
 
A follow up question from Councillor Stanton sought clarification about the 
long term impact of Covid on the leasehold of the Shortlands site and the 
extent of any reprofiling of the campus.  Emily Hill confirmed that the plans 
were unchanged but significant work had been undertaken on the return of 
staff to the civic campus.  Modelling had included the experience of Covid and 
the adjustment to work patterns could inform a wider accommodation review.  
Emily Hill stated that there were risks inherent with any large scale capital 
development included the possibility of incurring additional or increased costs 
which had been mitigated against, but contractual agreements meant that 
much of these will be met by the contractor.  Flexibility had been incorporated 
into the new layout of the building to afford greater adaptability to reflect 
future working patterns and access to the site.  Given the combined points 
around the staff consultation on the development of the campus and 
modelling, there was consensus to agree this as an area of focus. Councillor 
Vincent welcomed Emily Hill’s clarification that the £11 million of revenue 
generated through the joint venture would eventually go in to reserves in 
2023. The increased size of the reserves reflected a requirement of the 
auditors that the council implement a larger safety buffer.   
 
In response to a question from Councillor Vincent, Emily Hill confirmed that 
agency costs had significantly reduced from £25 million in 2019 but that the 
target of £12.5 million for the current year end would not be achieved this 
year due to the cost of employing agency staff in response to Covid.  Rhian 
Davis confirmed that the cost of agency staff to date was £13.4 million largely 
due to Covid but this was a substantial improvement on previous years. A 
policy of limiting agency costs would continue to help achieve a planned 
reduction.  Chris Littmoden observed that agency staff should be sought if 
their appointments represented good value for money.   
 
Councillor Quigley sought further information about the ongoing delivery of 
the civic campus work and whether staff would be engaged in the 
development of the campus.  Emily Hill confirmed the importance of an 

Page 14



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

inclusive approach to staff consultation.  Tony Clements added that the 
opportunities to lease space long term had been considered, which included 
an analysis of future workforce patterns, particularly in terms of how staff 
worked in relation to space and building structure. As indicated earlier, 
officers provided an assurance that they would support the committee’s 
further exploration of this issue. Judith Worthy commented that staff 
engagement was important and required the input of a representative and 
diverse workforce.  It was noted that PAC members should also have 
oversight of staff engagement work and that in addition this should also 
include members and residents.  
 
Erik Hohenstein advocated for a strategy to bridge the gap between austerity 
and raising council tax rates.  He referenced Council Leader Stephen 
Cowan’s comments, following years of austerity, supporting a freeze on 
council tax to protect the most vulnerable in the borough following years of. 
Emily Hill explained that the officer perspective on council tax was apolitical 
and that any increase beyond government expectation required a 
referendum.  Councillor Connell responded that he would not presume to 
speak on behalf of either Councillor Schmid or Councillor Cowan, however 
the current, difficult circumstances provoked a necessary increase in council 
tax to meet this challenge.  It was agreed that the Finance PAC invite the 
Leader to a future meeting to discuss council tax strategy given that the 
increase for 2021/22 reflected a departure from previous council tax policies.  
 
To conclude the discussion, the Chair, with the agreement of officers and 
members, summarised the actions as: 
 

1. Detailed summary of what is the “more” that residents can expect in 
terms of services that are recognisable to residents. 

2. Information about operational opportunities to generate revenue and 
the commercialisation of services, recognising that this might be 
challenging until the market begins to recover. 

3. The impact of Brexit on the goods and services market, how this will 
affect future business growth and how to generate opportunities within 
H&F within this climate.   

4. Simplify the language of local government finance and statistics into 
easy to understand language. 

5. A more explicit summary of the council’s zero-based budget focus. 
6. Information about the cost of “resident services” and what this referred 

to. 
7. A better understanding of the details of “contingency” planning about 

the civic campus redevelopment plan and the risks and opportunities 
within this.  This would be an area work that could be addressed by a 
small working group.  

8. Civic campus development – to ensure that detailed engagement is 
undertaken with staff about the new campus and its development.  

9. For the PAC to be provided with examples of case studies that will 
contextualise the impact of revenue and savings outlined in the report, 
with a view to better undertaking future scrutiny budget reviews.   

10. Linked to action 8, a key example would be the proposal to increase 
council tax for 21/22 and how this decision reflects the council’s 

Page 15



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will 
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting. 

 

strategic position.  The PAC would like further insight into the policy 
drivers for administrations the decision to increase council tax in line 
with government expectation. The PAC would welcome a presentation 
at a future meeting of the committee from either the Leader or the 
Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial about the change in 
policy.  

11. For the co-optees to be engaged in ongoing policy development, 
focusing on the funding of adult social care against the backdrop of 
Covid-19.  To explore the funding settlement in greater detail and to 
understand and respond to the future development of the governments 
green paper on adult social care provision (September 2019).   

12. For Finance PAC to receive a report on the experience of Croydon’s 
section 114 notice. 

 
 

 
Meeting started: 6.30pm 
Meeting ended: 8.32pm 

 
 

Chairman   

 
 
 
 

Contact officer: Bathsheba Mall 
Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 : 07776672816 
 E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

Page 16



   
 

 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 

  
Report to:  

  
Public Services Reform Policy and Accountability 
Committee 
  

Date:  

  
7 April 2021  

Subject:  

  
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion matters in H&F  

  
Report Author:  

  
Matt Sales, Assistant Director Programmes and 
Assurance  
Dawn Aunger, Assistant Director of Transformation, 
Talent and Inclusion  

  
Responsible Directors:  

  
Jacqui McShannon, Director of Children Services,   
Rhian Davies, Director of Resources   

 

 
Summary  
 
This report updates the committee on corporate initiatives as part of ensuring that 

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) is at the core of services to residents.  A 

separate report on this agenda updates the committee on the council’s workforce EDI 

initiatives.   

 

 
Recommendations 
 
1. The Committee notes the update against Equalities, Diversity and Inclusion 

activities, including the development of a new draft Equalities Plan for 2021-25. 

 

2. The Committee notes that the activities described in this report form part of H&Fs 

commitment to fully meeting the Public Sector Equalities Duty.   

 

H&F Values  Summary of how this report aligns to the H&F Priorities   

Creating a 
compassionate 
council  

Our vision is to become the most inclusive borough in the 
country. We are committed to tackling unfairness, 
discrimination and inequality.  

Doing things with 
residents, not to them 

We are committed to residents developing and co-producing 
council policies and strategies that impact on their lives and 
removing barriers to participation.  

Building shared 
prosperity 

Through consideration of equalities implications at every 
stage of the decision-making process and the creation of 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



   
 

 
 

targeted programmes, we seek to remove barriers and ensure 
that all can share in prosperity.  

Taking pride in H&F 
 
 

Our actions and policies for equalities, diversity and inclusion 
celebrate and protect the diversity of the borough, creating a 
place we can all be proud of. 

Being ruthlessly 
financially efficient 

Working with and valuing the contributions of residents leads 
to services which better meet the needs of our population in a 
financially efficient way.  

 
Introduction 
 
1. Equalities, diversity and inclusion (EDI) is at the heart of what Hammersmith & 

Fulham (H&F) is about, both as a place and a council.  We are committed to 

meeting the public sector equality duty1 that ensures the needs of residents of 

the borough that are disadvantaged or suffer inequality are always factored 

into how we make decisions, provide services and implement policies.   

 

2. Our vision is to become the most inclusive borough in the country, where 

residents feel valued, welcome and included, embracing the diversity of 

backgrounds, experiences and perspectives.  We are committed to tackling 

unfairness, promoting diversity and fostering inclusion. That’s why we are the 

only local authority to have abolished home care charges and are providing free 

breakfasts to all school-age children.  This is also why we were the only council 

in the country to help social workers who volunteered to go to the European 

refugee camps and we’ve now doubled our target for welcoming unaccompanied 

refugee children in Europe from 100 to 200, under the Lord Dubs scheme.   

 
3. The Covid-19 pandemic has highlighted inequalities more than at any other time 

in a generation, making this work more important than ever.  As a result, we have 

addressed language barriers to spread the stay at home messages, supported 

children and families to access education whilst home-schooling, are supporting 

residents whose incomes have been significantly impacted and are supporting 

residents to shield.  2020 saw deep reflection on racial inequalities and disparities 

 
1 There are nine ‘protected characteristics’ set out in the Equalities Act  2010 (the Act): age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, 
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. The Act sets out the public sector equality duty to 
ensure public authorities think about the needs of people who are disadvantaged or suffer 
inequality when making decisions about how they provide services and implement policies .  

Page 18



   
 

 
 

in the UK following the murder of George Floyd in America through the Black 

Lives Matter movement.  These areas are a key focus for our EDI activity.   

 
4. The Committee should note that equalities work is well embedded in 

departments.  This report focuses on corporate-level initiatives.   

Background 

5. H&F is one of the most diverse local authorities in the country.  Forty-three 

percent of residents were born outside of the UK, from over 100 different 

countries.  In mid-2020, 35% of the borough’s residents were from an ethnic 

group other than white (32% in 2011).  Twelve percent of our population are from 

a Black background, 10% Asian, 7% Arab and Other, and 6% Mixed ethnicity.  

The northern part of the borough is more ethnically diverse than the southern 

part, with diversity greatest in younger age groups.   

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



   
 

 
 

6. Overall, in 2019 H&F was ranked the 112th most 

deprived local authority in England according to 

the national deprivation index which looks at 

measures including living environment, housing, 

crime, income, employment, health and 

education.   The Clem Attlee estate is ranked in 

the 10% most deprived areas nationally.     

 
Draft 2021-25 H&F Equalities Plan Consultation 
 
7. Steered by the Deputy Leader Cllr. Fennimore, 

our draft equalities plan for 2021-25 seeks to 

promote equality of opportunity for all and deliver 

measurable improvements (see Appendix 1 for a 

summary).   The Council wants to hear about what barriers our residents face 

and how these can be tackled as we believe that if we work together and develop 

new policies we can address these barriers to make a real difference.   

 

8. We’ve launched a 12-week public consultation2 of the plan until the 30th of April.  

We’re asking residents to comment on the five key objectives that underpin the 

plan: 

i. Everyone in our borough must feel valued when the Covid-19 pandemic 
ends 

ii. Removing barriers to inclusion   
iii. Ensuring that our services tackle the disproportionate impact on young 

people of the risks of street crime and exploitation by gangs  
iv. Improving opportunities for all 
v. Becoming an employer of choice and fostering greater inclusion.   

 
Update on Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Activities 
 
9. The following sections of this report provide an update on key corporate EDI 

initiatives.  With the Covid-19 pandemic over the last year, it has not been 

possible to progress some corporate activities which promote our EDI agenda 

such as the Youth Takeover Day, CommUNITY Day and the Women’s 

 
2 For those not able to access the embedded hyperlink, the consultation can be found at 
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/equality  

Page 20

https://lbhf.citizenspace.com/hf/equality/
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/equality


   
 

 
 

Commission.  A future update can be provided to the Committee on progress 

with these and other EDI activities as Covid-19 restrictions ease.  

The Legacy of Community Involvement During the Pandemic 
 
10. Covid-19 has brought residents together in an unprecedented way.  At the 

start of the pandemic, Mutual Aid Groups (MAGs) quickly mobilised across the 

borough with residents providing hyper-local community support. Throughout 

Covid-19, the council has been inundated with ideas, offers of support and 

donations from residents.  H&F Community Aid Network (CAN) was established 

to facilitate the offers of help, and through this, 2,667 residents came forward and 

undertook a range of volunteering activities (in addition to the 1,500 people that 

volunteered through the MAGs).  As life starts to return to some semblance of 

normality, we are considering how we can build on this community energy and 

collaboration to support our equalities plan.   

Involving Residents in Decision Making 

 

11. Doing things with, not to, residents is also at the heart of our equalities plan.  

Since 2015, the council has launched 17 resident-led commissions. These 

commissions shape and develop borough policies, putting residents at the heart 

of decision-making.  This has included working with groups that traditionally are 

furthest away from decision making, such as refugees and asylum seekers, 

young disabled people and residents who are in institutions.  

 

12. Since 2018, good progress has been made through Disabled residents and 

decision-makers working together in an active way to plan, design and review 

policies and services that affect the lives of Disabled people.  This approach has 

been successfully pioneered in the Civic Campus development through the work 

of the Disabled Residents Team (DRT) which has involved co-production at 

every stage of design.  We are striving for H&F to be the first local authority to 

move towards an Independent Living support and service delivery model to 

provide Disabled people living in the community with the same choices, control 

and freedom as any other citizen.   

 

Page 21



   
 

 
 

13. We are also supporting the equalities plan through the delivery of the Older 

People’s Commission Recommendations.  We have invested in social care 

services through the social care precept and the efficient and effective use of 

resources.  During Covid-19, the council, providers of social care services and 

health have worked together closely to support those most in need.  Our 

‘Conversation Matters’ team are reaching all residents known to social care to 

check on their wellbeing and offer advice.  Communities and the CAN have 

supported our older residents during the pandemic by delivering food, making 

socially distanced wellness checks, and collecting medication.  

 
14. H&F is committed to recognising the role of the Armed Forces in the 

community and ensuring that those who serve or have serviced in the armed 

forces, and their families, are treated fairly.  In August 2020, our work was 

recognised with the Silver Armed Forces Covenant award, with plans 

underway to submit for the Gold award in 2021.  We have representatives from 

the Army on our Covid-19 working groups and we are employing veterans in our 

mass testing sites.  We are also actively engaging the Armed Forces with 

opportunities for young people/ care leavers and mentoring and developing 

links with the cadets’ movement.   

 
Celebration Events 
 
15. Although Covid-19 has necessitated a move to online engagement, we have 

maintained a varied calendar of events which celebrate diverse cultures and 

commemorate key events.  In October 2020, we took part in our most 

extensive Black History Month programme which was well received by 

residents and staff (see Appendix 2 for the programme).  We have committed 

to hosting a Black history/ culture event each month during 2021, with the 

calendar of future planned events (also shown in Appendix 2).   

 

16. A working group has been established to review street and building names, 

plaques and any potential historical links with slavery and colonialism.  In 

Education, work has progressed exploring the decolonialisation of the 

curriculum to make it more inclusive and relevant to a wider range of students. 

Our Youth Council has also been working alongside the UK Youth Parliament 

Page 22

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/articles/news/2021/02/celebrating-hammersmith-fulham-s-heritage


   
 

 
 

and other key partners to produce a ‘curriculum for life’ covering core life skills 

and including support for schools to tackle the subject of anti-racism and anti-

imperialism/ discrimination.  

 

17. In February 2021, we celebrated Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender 

(LGBT+) History Month, culminating in an event held by H&F Libraries entitled 

‘Hear Our Voices: A Celebration of LGBT+ Life experiences’. Residents and 

staff have been invited to submit contributions to an upcoming e-book of 

autobiographical narratives, poetry and spoken word which will be published 

later this year.  

 

18. We recently celebrated International Women’s Day, with two fantastic events; 

An Audience with Ruby Wax; and the Launch of the H&F Women's Network.  

Other key events celebrated by the council include carers week, 16 days of 

activism against Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) and Holocaust 

Memorial Day.   

 
Tackling crime and exploitation 
 
19. The priority in the council’s 2020/21 budget was keeping people safe.  This has 

seen an investment in law enforcement officers and new CCTV.  In the past few 

months, we’ve launched the flagship Gangs, Violence and Exploitation Unit 

(GVEU).  This is because some young people in the borough (and nationally) 

have been conscripted into gangs and gang culture by organised crime leaders. 

We intend to do everything we can to safeguard young people and prevent them 

being drawn into organised crime. We also need to help our partners in the Police 

to ensure those who perpetrate this form of exploitation are brought to justice. 

 

20. As part of our equalities plan, we have an active Anti-Hate Crime programme 

that is improving awareness of hate crime, discrimination and inequality.  The 

service supports victims and communities through events, campaigns and 

educational packages.  In the past two years, Stop Hate UK and Show Racism 

the Red Card have delivered training, awareness and community engagement 

sessions to over 1,200 people.   

Page 23



   
 

 
 

Opportunities for all 
 

21. A key part of the council’s strategy is to provide young people with opportunities 

and equip them for the future.  During Covid-19, we have enabled 1,900 

electronic devices to be provided to school-age young people.  We have now 

launched an urgent appeal with H&F UNITED and social enterprise Ready Tech 

Go to secure 1,500 additional devices, and support internet connectivity for 

children and young people in digital need.   

 

22. We know that the employment of younger adults has been hit particularly hard 

by the pandemic.  Unemployment claims between March and December 2020 

increased by 133% overall, but by 178% for 18-24 year-olds and 219% for 25-29 

year olds.  There has also been a three-fold increase since the start of the crisis 

of young people on work-related benefits.  We also know that issues of poverty, 

financial isolation and inequality are disproportionately impacting some sections 

of our community.   

 
23. Working with Industrial Strategy partners, business groups and employers, the 

council will improve access to resilient growth sector careers for young people 

and adults in the borough.  Work is underway to support access to careers 

advice, apprenticeships, jobs and developing partnerships with schools so young 

people and teachers are aware of the wealth of opportunities on their doorstep.  

We are expanding the Kickstart programme as pathways to longer-term 

employment for young people, with over 100 local vacancies generated through 

employer partnerships under this scheme.  We have also secured £99,000 of 

funding through the Department for Work and Pensions to support people 

seeking a return to work.   

 
24. For disabled residents and those with learning disabilities, we are taking a more 

targeted approach.  We work closely with voluntary sector and business partners 

to provide tailored support.  Examples include a focussed work placement 

programme with Parents Active; a programme of vocational skills development 

through Fairshot Café; and an entrepreneur support programme through Petite 

Miracles.  As reported separately to the committee, we also have a supported 

internship scheme. 

Page 24



   
 

 
 

25. For Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic residents, we are supporting access to 

mentors, developing links with local groups and undertaking targeted 

engagement, which included a Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic jobs fair. 

 
26. For older workers, we are supporting residents to gain new skills.  This includes 

courses through our Adult Learning service on digital inclusion and starting a new 

business.  We are also helping to address barriers such as long-term 

unemployment and health issues.   

  

Page 25



   
 

 
 

ANNEX 1 – DRAFT EQUALITIES PLAN 2021-25 OPEN FOR CONSULTATION 
 

i. Everyone in our borough must feel valued when the Covid-19 pandemic 
ends 

 
The Covid-19 pandemic has highlighted the 

importance and impact of community 

wellbeing and collaboration. Our goal is to 

keep this at the heart of our public health 

response and draw on it to strengthen wider 

community and social cohesion.  

ii. Removing barriers to inclusion  
  
Our objective is to establish H&F as the most 

accessible and inclusive borough in the 

country. Following the recommendation of our 

local Disabled People’s Commission, led by 

local Disabled residents, our aim is for all 

residents to be involved in developing and co-

producing all council policies and strategies that impact on their lives. 

iii. Ensuring that our services tackle the disproportionate impact on young 
people of the risks of street crime and exploitation by gangs  

 
We want to make sure that all children and young people at risk of gangs 

and street crime receive the critical services and interventions available to 

better equip them to secure positive opportunities and bright futures.   

iv. Improving opportunities for all   
 

We want to create opportunities for residents and communities of all 

backgrounds to flourish, developing their skills and abilities in their chosen 

career paths.  

v. Becoming an employer of choice and fostering greater inclusion 
 

We want to recruit from all sections of our community to ensure that the 

council’s workforce reflects the borough’s diversity whilst creating  an 

environment where all staff feel secure and confident in being themselves. 

Read the full plan online: Consultation on our Draft Equalities Plan 2021-25  

Page 26

https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/1132_hf_draft_equalities_plan_web.pdf
https://www.lbhf.gov.uk/sites/default/files/section_attachments/1132_hf_draft_equalities_plan_web.pdf


   
 

 
 

APPENDIX 2 - BLACK HISTORY MONTH EVENTS 
 

Date 

2020 

Event Lead speaker/ 
organisation 

1 October Introduction to Black Presence in the National 
Galleries in London  

Michael Ohajuru 

2 October Marvel Comics Black Panther Breakdown: The 
Hidden Truth of Black Panther. A fascinating 
breakdown of the hit 2018 film  

Andrew Muhammad 
aka THE 
INVESTIGATOR 

5 October The Amazing History of Black People in London 
before 1948  

Black History 
Studies  

8 October When We Ruled: Thousands of Years of a Visible 
African Heritage  

Robin Walker   
 

9 October Black Couples Who Made World History:  
 

Black History 
Studies 

12 
October 

Why Black History Matters in a Decolonised 
Curriculum: 

Robin Walker 

13 
October 

Queens and Great Women of Ancient and 
Mediaeval Africa  

Black History 
Studies 

14 
October 

Born of Good Intentions: The Life and Times of 
Black Victorian Children in a Dr Barnardo’s Home  

Avril Nanton 

15 
October 

Tutankhamen’s Black History 
 

Robin Walker 

19 
October 

Twelve Black History Icons during the slave trade 
period 

Robin Walker 

21 
October 

An hour with Gideon Springer former Chief 
Superintendent Borough Commander for H&F 

Gideon 
Springer/Roy Clarke 

21 
October 

African history before the slave trade 
 

Black History 
Studies 

22 
October 

Black British History: 70 years of music and 
struggle (1948-2018) 

Robin Walker 

26 
October 

Jack Johnson Hero or Villain First Black 
Heavyweight Champion of the World 1908 

Avril Nanton 

27 
October 

Virtual Black History tour of the British Museum Black History 
Studies 

28 
October 

The Windrush Generation: What’s all the fuss 
about? 

Peter Parkin 

29 
October 

So you think you know about Black History? Avril Nanton/Robin 
Walker 

30 
October 

The Afrikan Origins of the United Kingdom Andrew Muhammad 
aka THE 
INVESTIGATOR 

30 
October 

H&F Black History Month special performance : 
Traditional Storytelling by renowned international 
flautist 

Keith Waithe and 
TUUP  
 

 

  

Page 27



   
 

 
 

Forward plan of black history events throughout 2021 
 

January The Lost Civilisations of Central Africa 

February Did Africans Write? 

March Africa and the Origin and Evolution of Mathematics 
Mother's Day and International Women's Day: The Image of the African 
Woman in Western European Art 

April Launch BAME Support Network Group 
Queens of the Nile and Nigeria 

May What did Early West Africa contribute to Science and Technology? 
Anniversary / Commemoration of George Floyd's death 

June Father’s Day - Celebration of Black men  
Celebrations of Windrush 
Nubian Life: Small documentary on residents in the Borough from (Jazz 
Brown - Nubian Life) 
What did Early East Africa contribute to Science and Technology?  

August Was Slavery a Choice? A Historian Replies to Mr West 

September Twelve Great Africans of the Last Two Hundred Years 

October How to Get Black History into Schools and stay within the National 
Curriculum  

November Events to be confirmed 

December Events to be confirmed 

Dates to be 
confirmed 

Black history walks/quizzes 
Birthday of Emperor Halle Selassie / History / Presentation 
Carnival Theme / Presentation / Music Event - Steel Band / Live 
Performance joint with Presentation, Reading etc, 
Charmaine Simpson - Black Women and Finance 

 
 

Page 28



   
 

1 
 

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   Public Services Reform Policy and     

  Accountability Committee   
 
Date:  7 April 2021 
 

Subject: Workforce Equality, Diversity & Inclusion  

 
Report of: Dawn Aunger, Assistant Director Transformation, Talent and 

Inclusion  
 
Responsible Director: Rhian Davies, Director of Resources   
 

 
Summary 
 
This report updates the committee on the focused and fast paced programme of work 

to enliven our Equality, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI) goals in 2020 and beyond. A 

separate paper outlines the resident-facing diversity and inclusion work that we are 

delivering across the Council. 

 

A diverse and inclusive workforce is vital for any organisation that seeks to thrive in a 

dynamic, ever-changing environment, particularly for an organisation that strives to be 

representative of the people it serves. In too many organisations, group-think leads to 

an inability to adequately identify risks and opportunities. A diverse workforce and 

leadership team, in which all employees feel able to contribute, is the best defence 

against this.  

 

The focus on the EDI agenda has intensified over the last year: 

 

• the tackling racial inequality work in response to the murder of George Floyd and 

the Black Lives Matter movement  

• Covid-19 has had a disproportionate impact on BAME (Black, Asian and Minority 

Ethnic) groups in terms of Covid-19 cases and deaths during the pandemic  

• We launched a 12-week consultation with residents on the draft H&F Equalities 

Plan 2021-25 on 1st February 2021.  

 

The ambition to become a more equal, diverse, and inclusive employer is shared 

across the Council’s staff and senior management and that passion is reflected in the 

prioritisation of EDI in the Council’s business plan.  

 

This report focuses on the 2019/20 journey towards developing our workforce EDI 

practices at H&F. Whilst the Covid-19 global pandemic significantly interrupted this 

work in 2020, in recent months SLT has reignited this programme by establishing a 

new team focusing on Transformation, Talent and Inclusion (TTI) and delivering the 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



   
 

2 
 

Council’s wider commitment to improving equality, diversity and inclusion within 

services and the workplace.  

 

 
Recommendations 
 

1. That the committee notes and comments on the progress made and plans 
going forward. 

 

 
 

H&F Priorities Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Priorities  

Creating a compassionate council Our workforce EDI activities align with the 
Council’s Industrial Strategy which seeks 
to improve employment and career 
pathway opportunities for residents as well 
as benefit the borough economy, the 
workforce and in turn the local community.   
 

Taking pride in H&F Any work to ensure the Council workforce 
reflects and respects the diverse borough 
population strengthens our EDI 
commitment to residents and helps 
promote H&F as a great place to live, work 
and visit  

 
Contact Officers: 
Name:  Dawn Aunger   
Position: Assistant Director Transformation, Talent and Inclusion   
Email:  dawn.aunger@lbhf.gov.uk  
 
Name:  Mary Lamont 
Position: Strategic Head of People and Talent 
Email:  mary.lamont@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report - None 
 

  

Page 30

about:blank
about:blank


   
 

3 
 

Purpose 

 
1. This paper focuses on equality, diversity and inclusion (EDI) in relation to workforce 

matters. Members should note that equalities work is well embedded in 

departments’ service delivery and the equalities implications of all Council policy 

and expenditure decisions are detailed in every committee report.  

Background 

 
2. Members will be familiar with the nine ‘protected characteristics’ protected through 

the Equality Act 2010.  In H&F our Business Plan and People Strategy frame a 

strong and clear commitment to address inequality, exclusion and discrimination.   

H&F Equalities Data 

 
3. The population of Hammersmith & Fulham was 186,480 in 2020. As at the end of 

December 2020 there were 2,090 staff employed by Hammersmith and Fulham.  

 

4. The Equality Act 2010 built upon existing legislation and introduced 9 ‘protected 

characteristics.  These are the 9 protected characteristics under the Act: 

 

 
 

5. Appendix A provides an overarching summary breakdown of the workforce 
diversity data that we collect associated with protected characteristics under the 
Equalities Act for age, disability, gender, marriage and civil partnership status, 
race & religion.  Whilst not included within the appendix of this report, we also 
collect data for sexual orientation, pregnancy and maternity. 

 
6. Also provided is a summary of comparative data based on the 2011 Census. 

 

Page 31



   
 

4 
 

 

7. The diagram below sets out the wider inclusion links associated with our equality, 

diversity and inclusion agenda and activity.  The following ten areas of work have 

been agreed with the Chief Executive as immediate priorities for the workforce 

equalities workplan: 

 

Reviewing our practice 

 
8. In January 2019 the Assistant Director for Transformation, Talent and Inclusion 

(previously People and Talent) commissioned an internal review of the Council’s 

approach to EDI using the LGA Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG), 

a well-established, equalities self-assessment toolkit designed to help 

organisations review and improve their performance with characteristics protected 

by the Equality Act 2010. The assessment results in one of three levels: 

developing, achieving, and excellent and concluded that the Council is at the 

‘developing’ level of achievement. This informed an early work plan for the 

‘Inclusive Workplace’ working group (part of the H&F Way culture change 

programme discussed at the last PSR PAC).  

 

 

Wider Inclusion

linkages

H&F Equalities 
Plan

Consultation & 
implementation

H&F WAY (staff 
led 

transformation 
programme)

Co production 
with Disabled 

residents 

Tackling Racial 
inequality

Robust data, 
insights and 
monitoring  
underpin 
activities

Annual events; 
memorials & 
celebrations

Policy 
development & 

oversight 

Women’s 
Network

Faith

Forum  

Inclusive Employer

Improving recruitment, 
onboarding, induction & 

training  offer

Page 32



   
 

5 
 

9.  The plan covers: 

 

• Communication, engagement and transparency 

• Learning from others and identifying good practice 

• Staff co-producing change 

• Inclusive and accessible workspaces 

• Fair and transparent recruitment and development opportunities 

• Equality, Diversity and Inclusion training 

• Data collection and monitoring 

 

10. In addition, work to secure the business sector Race at Work Charter entailed 

a series of consultation exercises across the workforce including SLT, staff 

representatives (race equality leads & champions), Leadership Forum (ADs 

and Directors), Managers Forum (150 managers), World Class Managers 

Forum and the H&F Way Inclusive workplace staff group. As a result, H&F 

signed up to the Charter in February 2021 and will strive to monitor and 

benchmark our progression against five principles: 

 

• Appoint an executive sponsor for Race (Emily Hill, Director of Finance) 

• Consolidation of current data sets, identification of any potential gaps 

and wider promotion in terms of publication 

• Commit at SLT level to zero tolerance to harassment and bullying 

• Make it clear that supporting equality in the workplace is the 

responsibility of all leaders and managers 

• Take action that supports ethnic minority career progression. 

Reacting and acting  

 

11. In May 2020, the Black Lives Matter movement erupted internationally in 

response to the murder of George Floyd in the United States of America. In 

H&F, the Chief Executive initiated two workforce Teams sessions, ‘Now is not 

the time to be silent’, to capture the mood of the workforce and calls for action, 

which were attended by 350 staff. What has been hugely apparent is the 

demand from staff to raise race equality work up the agenda and for them to be 

able to play a stronger role in advancing race equality within the Council. This 

led to the creation of four race equality staff groups with part-time secondment 

opportunities for five Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) race leads and 

13 race equality champions, as well as a number of all staff volunteers recruited 

via a Get Ahead internal secondment campaign. Workplans have been 

developed across the following four groups: 

 

1. Race equality data monitoring group (monitoring workforce ethnicity, 

Equality Plan progress and targets)  

Page 33



   
 

6 
 

2. Black Asian, Minority Ethnic staff progression group (using analytics and 

insights) 

3. Mandatory tackling racial inequality training and development for managers 

and staff 

4. Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic experience, culture and black history group 

 

12. The activities associated with the race equality groups have become more 

buoyant as the Chief Executive is also leading on the pan-London programme 

- Local authorities tackling racial inequality.  The H&F work purposely mirrors 

the pan-London work so more visible and aligned outcomes can be achieved.  

 

13. The priority themes for the London Tackling Race Inequality working group are: 

• Demonstrating leadership 

• Our role as large employers  

• Challenging and improving practice across services (best practice) 

 

14. Further equality, diversity and inclusion work conducted in 2020 is outlined 

in more detail below: 

 

• Black History Month in October was very successful with over 20 online 

events taking place for staff and residents. The ‘Experience, culture and 

black history’ staff group are planning events to take place monthly 

throughout the forthcoming year. 

 

• Declarations - the Race at Work Charter was signed by the Chief Executive 

and the Deputy Leader on 1 February 2021 during Race Equalities week.  

This will be a tool to measure our ongoing race equality improvement plan. 

 

• Benchmarking – London Councils have been approached to lead on the 

collation of data monitoring for both race equality and wider inclusion 

measures. This work is in its early stages.  

 

• Approach to assurance/accountability is under consideration including the 

possibility of peer reviews across boroughs.  

 

• Data and demographics – our Business Intelligence team is supporting with 

the collation of data for H&F particularly linked to race.   

 

• New e-learning modules were released for all staff on unconscious bias in 

June 2020 and equality and diversity in the workplace in September 2020, 

which have subsequently been made mandatory for all staff.  The 

compliance rate at the end of February was 45%, and SLT expect numbers 

Page 34



   
 

7 
 

to steadily rise following a renewed communication campaign to all 

managers and staff. All new members of staff must undertake the training as 

part of their induction. 

 

• Inclusive employment - the Council aims to embed EDI into its range of 

employment support offers to all residents who are seeking employment, 

apprenticeships and/or training. The current review of the employment offer 

provides the Council with the opportunity to co-produce inclusive recruitment 

solutions with residents. 

 

• Share not declare – the implementation of the HR personnel system, 

integrated business centre (IBC), identified some gaps in personal data sets 

and staff have been encouraged to update and share personal data, 

including ethnicity.  We have improved our employee database with now only 

12% of staff (as of 3 March 2021) who have chosen not to share their 

information compared to 22% prior to the last communication. 

Activity planned for 2021 

          
15. H&F aims to be widely recognised as an Inclusive Council through a deeper 

and more visible focus on its draft Equalities Plan 2021-25 (currently subject to 

resident consultation until 30 April).  A separate report with an external focus 

will outline the objectives of the Equalities Plan and links to the current 

consultation exercise.    

 

16. Ten areas of work have been agreed with the Chief Executive as immediate 

priorities for the workforce equalities workplan as indicated in the wider linkages 

diagram on page 4.  The following highlights some of the activities that are 

taking place to address those priorities: 

a) Inclusive Employer: 

 

• A comprehensive review of our inclusive recruitment, onboarding and 

induction process has been undertaken in conjunction with colleagues from 

the H&F Way inclusive working group.  The strategic head of people and 

talent will be responsible for ensuring that actions and outcomes are fully 

addressed along with a focus on continuous improvement which will be 

further supported through outcomes arising from further reviews being 

undertaken by the newly established race equality group activities. 

 

• A virtual inclusion team was launched in January 2021, to bring together key 

officers to build an inclusion ‘community of practice’ across H&F. This group 

will also assist in the development of workplans and target setting. 

 

Page 35



   
 

8 
 

• A further working group has been set up which is chaired by the strategic 

director for social care to tackle the barriers to inclusive employment as a 

major employer in the borough.   

 

• The strategic head of people & talent will continue to work closely with 

Economic Development to establish the H&F Apprenticeship Academy 

featuring our Earn while you Learn offer to maximise the number of 

apprenticeship opportunities in H&F and the borough and make the best use 

of the apprenticeship levy. This includes opportunities for supported 

apprenticeships. 

 

• Our learning and development offer is being overhauled to ensure it delivers 

what staff and managers need in a post-Covid world. This will start with a 

great onboarding and induction employee experience. 

b) H&F Way (Culture change initiative led by staff volunteers): 

 

• The H&F Way inclusive workplace group will work with the co-production 

strategic leads to establish a network of co-production champions across all 

six departments to support the work required to ensure that we have inclusive 

and accessible workspaces. 

 

• The group will also work with the strategic head of people and talent to 

ensure that we improve the transparency of our recruitment and 

development opportunities. 

c) Co-production: 

 

• Co-production strategic leads will be setting up a virtual co-production staff 

network to work across departments and programmes to ensure that co-

production becomes everyone’s business. More detail around our co-

production plans for the year ahead are provided in the separate, resident 

focused, equalities paper. 

d) Tackling racial inequality: 

 

• The four race equality groups (as outlined in paragraph 7) will deliver their 

six-month workplans, reporting back monthly to the Senior Responsible 

Officer (SRO) for race equality (Emily Hill) and the Chief Executive. 

 

 

Page 36



   
 

9 
 

e) Robust data, insights and monitoring: 

 

• Equality data will continue to be monitored and published on the intranet, 

plus externally as required across London Councils to meet our regulatory 

requirements on gender and ethnicity pay gap reporting. 

• H&F Equalities Plan consultation feedback from residents will be monitored 

over a 12-week period and incorporated into a set of actions. This plan 

addresses the Public Sector Equality Duty created under the Equality Act 

2010. 

 

• The five Race Equality leads created a short blog and video to encourage 

staff to ‘share not declare’ their data so that we can better understand our 

ethnicity workforce data in comparison to the local communities that we 

represent. 

f) Events, memorials and celebrations: 

 

• Black History and culture events will continue to be held virtually every month 

for staff which will also be open to residents. 

• The very first Race Equality history week took place from 1-7 February. Our 

race equality leads worked with the staff Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic 

(BAME) network groups in the Royal Borough of Kensington and Chelsea 

and Westminster City Council to run 14 different events. They were very well 

attended by staff across the three boroughs and showed the strength in our 

approach to enable staff led activity, by staff for staff. 

• LGBT+ history month was celebrated in February along with a number of 

twilight webinars that staff were able to join in and ask questions of the 

keynote speakers.  

• International Women’s day on 8 March included a special guest speaker and 

a Q&A panel for staff and residents, sponsored by the Deputy Leader. 

• A survey was conducted across the workforce to inform the need and focus 

of a staff Women’s group, launched on International Women’s Day on 8 

March 2021. 

• A forward plan of monthly events is being reviewed for the year ahead. 

g) Employment policy development and oversight: 

 

• As part of our policy development programme, the existing equality, diversity 

and inclusion policy is being reviewed during 2021. 

Page 37



   
 

10 
 

• Comprehensive training will be given to managers and staff volunteers on 

writing committee reports and equalities impact assessments on projects and 

programmes of change. 

Measures and performance  

 
17. Appendix 2 outlines high-level equalities benchmarking data that is collated by 

the HR Metrics Service on behalf of London Councils.  The service conducts a 

range of HR metrics surveys for the 32 London boroughs and the City of London 

Corporation which provides benchmarking and analysis to enable boroughs to: 

• compare and assess their performance across a range of HR measures; 

• work collaboratively to develop and progress best practice; and 

• tackle new challenges that require data insights. 

 

18. This basic data indicates that of the 1,973 members of staff at 31/3/20: 

 

• The average age of the workforce is 47 

• 2.2% of staff are aged between16-24  

• 45.8% of staff are aged between 50-64  

• The percentage of female workers is 56% 

• The percentage of part-time workers is 15% 

• 42% of our top earners are female   

• 12.5% of our top 5% of earners are classified as Black, Asian or Minority 

Ethnic.   

• 6.2% of our staff have indicated a disability 

• Only 2.1% of staff who have indicated a disability are top earners are 

disabled.   

 

19. Similar to our experience in relation to the collection of ethnicity data, it is 

apparent that there are large groups of the workforce who prefer not to declare 

certain aspects of their identity.   We are clear that there is still much to do, to 

raise awareness and provide reassurance around the importance of collecting 

this data. 

 

20. The benchmark data indicates that we have much more work to do to be 

representative of our community.  Further analysis of our equalities data will be 

conducted this year with support from the business intelligence team in 

conjunction with our data monitoring working group to understand our data and 

trends and to inform our priorities for action.  

 

21. The data also demonstrates the importance of our various talent schemes 

which have been introduced to attract, develop and retain the skills and people 

that we will need for the future. 

Page 38



   
 

11 
 

 

22. Our next gender and equality pay gap reports will be published on 31 March 

2021 and will provide important intelligence to further inform existing and 

planned activities that are being developed as we make progress with our 

inclusion agenda. 

 

23. The success of our inclusion agenda will be measured through the outcomes 

of our internal staff engagement survey which will be launched in April 2021 

and will be benchmarked against the staff engagement index which was last 

measured by the Best Companies survey undertaken in 2018, indicating an 

employee engagement rate of 53%.  These surveys will be taken quarterly to 

ensure a regular temperature check on staff engagement levels and allow for 

timely interventions. 

 

24. Our race equalities working groups will develop benchmarks, standards and 

targets by April 2021 in discussion with SLT, for monthly review by the Chief 

Executive, the SRO for race equality, the assistant director for transformation, 

talent and inclusion, the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Public 

Services Reform. Our aim is to ensure that our workforce profile represents the 

demographics of the local communities that we serve. 

 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 39



   
 

12 
 

Appendix 1 – Hammersmith & Fulham and Workplace comparative diversity data 
sets based on the equality act protected characteristics for age, gender, disability, 
religion & ethnicity.   
 
 
Gender 
H&F Workforce February 2020 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Gender 
Hammersmith and Fulham resident population 2019 

 
  

Male
49.0%

Female
51.0%

Male
44.5%Female

55.5%

Page 40



   
 

13 
 

Age 
H&F Workforce February 2020 

 

 
 
 
 
Age 
Hammersmith and Fulham resident population 2019  

3%

16%

23%

26%

28%

4%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Aged 16-24 Aged 25-34 Aged 35-44 Aged 45-54 Aged 55-64 Aged 65-75

15%

26%

21%

17%

12%

9%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

Aged 16-24 Aged 25-34 Aged 35-44 Aged 45-54 Aged 55-64 Aged 65-75

Page 41



   
 

14 
 

Ethnicity 
H&F Workforce February 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ethnicity 
Hammersmith and Fulham resident population 2019 

 
  

Page 42



   
 

15 
 

Religion 
H&F Workforce February 2020 

  
 
Religion 
Hammersmith and Fulham resident population 2019 

23.8%

54.1%

1.1% 1.1% 0.6%

10.0%

0.2% 0.5%

8.4%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

No religion Christian Buddhist Hindu Jewish Muslim Sikh Other
religion

Religion
not stated

0.3%

32.0%

2.7%
0.2%

4.9%

15.4%

1.6% 0.8%

42.2%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

40.0%

45.0%

Buddhist Christian Hindu Jewish Muslim
(Islam)

No religion
or belief

Other
belief /
religion

Sikhism Not Stated
/ no data

Page 43



   
 

16 
 

Disability 
H&F Workforce February 2020 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Disability 
Hammersmith and Fulham resident population 2019 

  

6%
6%

88%

Day-to-day activities limited a lot Day-to-day activities limited a little

Day-to-day activities not limited

8.6%

91.4%

Disabled Non disabled

Page 44



   
 

17 
 

Sexual orientation  
H&F Workforce February 2020 

 
  

64.7%

30.9%

2.6% 1.4% 0.3% 0.1%
0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

No data Heterosexual
(straight)

Prefer not to say Gay man /woman Bisexual Other

Page 45



   
 

18 
 

Appendix 2 – Benchmark equality data by borough @ 31.3.2020 
 
 

 

Council
Headcou

nt

Full time 

equivalen

ts

16 to 24 25 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 64
65 and 

older

Average 

age of 

workforce

Male Female

Percenta

ge of top 

5% 

earners: 

female

Asian 

(incl. 

Chinese)

Black

Mixed/M

ultiple 

Heritage

White
Other 

Ethnicity

Percenta

ge of top 

5% 

earners: 

BAME

Percentag

e of staff 

declaring 

a disability

Percenta

ge of top 

5% 

earners 

who are 

disabled

Barnet 1979 1753.65 3.2% 28.4% 22.5% 40.0% 5.8% 47.0 37.4% 62.6% 54.1 13.1% 21.3% 1.9% 62.2% 1.5% 27.6 5.6 8.6

Bexley 1604 1423.89 7.0% 28.9% 20.7% 39.0% 4.3% 45.1 24.6% 75.4% 53.75 3.6% 9.2% 2.5% 79.5% 5.2% 8.75 5.24 6.25

Brent 2365 2237.15 4.4% 32.1% 26.0% 35.2% 2.4% 44.0 36.4% 63.6% 49.2 25.6% 34.9% 4.6% 33.5% 1.4% 28.2 8.5 8.4

Bromley 1567 1351 3.6% 26.4% 23.9% 42.4% 3.7% 46.0 23.0% 77.0% 53.8 4.8% 19.6% 3.3% 71.5% 0.9% 16.7 4.2 2.6

Camden 4011 3675 2.6% 29.7% 26.2% 39.0% 2.6% 44.0 43.5% 56.5% 49.8 12.0% 25.9% 4.7% 54.8% 2.6% 17.2 4.6 3.4

City of London 2749 2623 2.1% 27.9% 23.9% 42.7% 3.5% 46.7 60.7% 39.3% 27 6.8% 9.9% 3.1% 78.0% 2.2% 7 3.8 2.6

Croydon 3517 3289.51 2.8% 28.7% 24.0% 41.1% 3.4% 46.5 66.2% 33.8% 57.8 7.0% 27.9% 5.4% 56.0% 3.7% 19.7 8.4 8.8

Ealing 2695 2503 2.7% 24.9% 24.1% 43.4% 5.0% 49.5 34.5% 65.5% 46.6 24.8% 23.4% 5.4% 44.5% 1.8% 16.2 4.2 2.4

Enfield 3129 2821 3.9% 26.7% 24.7% 40.8% 4.0% 47.5 37.6% 62.4% 49.4 7.6% 22.5% 4.0% 64.4% 1.5% 16.6 4.8 6.4

Greenwich 3751 3522 3.0% 27.5% 21.3% 44.9% 3.2% 47.0 44.3% 55.7% 43.6 7.1% 21.3% 3.7% 67.3% 0.5% 18.3 5.1 3.5

Hackney 4371 4066.14 3.4% 32.2% 25.1% 37.1% 2.3% 44.8 46.3% 53.7% 49.08 12.0% 36.5% 5.8% 44.6% 1.2% 28.99 6.41 3.41

Hammersmith 1973 1837 2.2% 26.7% 22.4% 45.8% 2.9% 47.0 44.3% 55.7% 42.7 9.2% 29.9% 6.9% 53.0% 1.1% 12.5 6.2 2.1

Haringey 2065 1875 1.6% 22.8% 27.3% 45.4% 3.0% 47.6 34.6% 65.4% 50 10.8% 37.2% 4.9% 44.7% 2.3% 25 6.7 2.1

Havering 2461 2047 3.1% 24.9% 24.4% 42.8% 4.8% 46.2 32.7% 67.3% 55.7 2.5% 5.8% 1.2% 89.5% 1.0% 12.2 14.8 16.7

Hillingdon 2682 2237 5.5% 28.7% 23.6% 37.9% 4.3% 45.0 35.7% 64.3% 51.5 17.2% 11.4% 2.5% 67.0% 1.8% 13.4 2.3 1.5

Hounslow 2263 2039 3.5% 28.4% 24.0% 39.2% 5.0% 46.0 32.7% 67.3% 63.7 27.0% 15.1% 3.4% 51.8% 2.7% 24.8 4.2 2.7

Islington 4586 4239 2.7% 27.2% 25.1% 41.4% 3.6% 46.0 47.1% 52.9% 55.6 8.6% 28.5% 4.9% 56.3% 1.7% 19.3 17.8 19.3

Kensington 2274 2144.2 2.5% 30.9% 24.0% 39.2% 3.4% 46.0 39.5% 60.5% 38.2 8.2% 21.3% 6.4% 61.1% 2.9% 12.75 6.8 6.9

Kingston 1153 938 5.4% 30.0% 22.2% 38.7% 3.7% 45.0 40.8% 59.2% 51.6 9.3% 7.7% 3.5% 77.8% 1.7% 11.4 4.8 2.7

Lambeth 2451 2338.23 1.3% 27.2% 25.3% 42.1% 4.1% 46.8 39.3% 60.7% 45.7 8.9% 45.2% 4.3% 40.5% 1.0% 35.1 8.8 1.3

Lewisham 2375 2150 2.3% 23.2% 24.1% 45.9% 4.4% 47.8 38.4% 61.6% 61 3.7% 36.1% 4.5% 54.1% 1.6% 15 3.8 3

Merton 1731 1545.91 3.1% 21.7% 23.1% 46.8% 5.4% 48.0 31.9% 68.1% 48.84 8.4% 20.8% 3.4% 66.3% 1.0% 11.43 5.61 6.15

Newham 3434 3189 4.5% 30.0% 22.4% 39.6% 3.4% 45.1 43.5% 56.5% 57.4 26.1% 26.8% 3.1% 42.4% 1.6% 43.2 6.5 6.7

Redbridge 2598 2001 3.7% 23.2% 23.9% 43.6% 5.6% 47.6 36.8% 63.2% 58 26.2% 19.2% 3.3% 50.2% 1.1% 38 5.3 5

Richmd/Wands 3248 2977 3.4% 27.3% 22.8% 43.2% 3.2% 46.2 39.2% 60.8% 40.8 7.6% 25.9% 4.3% 60.2% 1.9% 13.2 8.3 5.7

Southwark 4183 3994 3.7% 28.5% 23.1% 41.9% 2.8% 46.3 51.5% 48.5% 45.2 6.3% 38.0% 4.0% 48.7% 3.2% 21.4 6.1 5.3

Sutton 1210 1088 6.3% 30.7% 23.7% 37.4% 1.9% 44.0 26.5% 73.5% 59.9 7.3% 15.0% 2.6% 73.9% 1.3% 15.3 3 1.2

Tower Hamlets 3776 3288 1.5% 31.9% 25.8% 38.0% 2.8% 45.0 35.9% 64.1% 52.4 34.6% 22.8% 2.7% 38.5% 1.3% 30.1 6.3 8.5

Waltham Forest 2471 2150 2.6% 25.2% 24.4% 43.9% 3.9% 47.0 31.2% 68.8% 45.2 15.5% 34.8% 2.9% 42.6% 4.1% 19.3 2.5 2.2

Westminster 2461 2340.34 4.7% 36.3% 24.5% 32.1% 2.5% 43.3 43.4% 56.6% 40 11.4% 19.6% 4.6% 61.6% 2.8% 12.6 9.8 5.2

Total 81133 73683.02 3.3% 28.1% 24.1% 40.9% 3.6% 46.1 41.1% 58.9% 49.92 13.0% 25.4% 4.0% 55.7% 1.9% 19.7 6.3 5.4

Page 46



London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 

 
Report to:   Public Services Reform Policy and    

  Accountability Committee   
 
Date:    7 April 2021  
 

Subject:   Workforce efficiency: reducing agency spend   

 
Report of:    Mary Lamont, Strategic Head of People and Talent  
 
Responsible Director: Rhian Davies, Director of Resources   
 

 
Summary 
 
This report provides an update on activity being undertaken to reduce agency spend.  

The report provides an overview of actions being taken, demonstrates the trends of 

progress and outlines next steps. The Council’s overarching aim was for a 50% 

reduction in agency spend by 31 March 2021, bringing us from the top quartile spend 

to the lowest quartile of spend across London borough benchmarks.  The target would 

reduce agency spend from £25m to £12.5m.  Although significant progress has been 

made, in circumstance that were more testing than envisioned, we are currently 

forecasting a total spend of £17.98m at the end of the year, a total reduction of 28% 

on last years’ spend.  

 

 
Recommendation 
 
1. That the committee notes the progress made and plans going forward. 
 

 
Wards Affected - None 
 

H&F Values  Summary of how this report aligns to the 
H&F Priorities  

Creating a compassionate council Reducing agency spend aligns with the 
council’s vision to improve employment and 
career pathways opportunities for the local 
community and the workforce ‘grow your own’ 
initiatives.  

Being ruthlessly financially efficient Reducing agency spend aligns with the 
council’s objectives of being ruthlessly financial 
efficient in reducing agency spend by 50%. 

Taking pride in H&F Reducing agency spend aligns with the 
council’s priority of taking pride in H&F by 
offering internal and external opportunities for 
employment and personal development which 
aligns with the vision of making H&F a great 
place to work. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



Contact Officer: 
Name:  Mary Lamont   
Position: Strategic Head of People & Talent   
Email:  mary.lamont@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report - None 
 

 
Background  

 

1. The main source of the information contained in this report is drawn from the 

workforce dashboard, a Business Intelligence application that was introduced to 

the strategic leadership team (SLT) at the beginning of July 2020.  The data feed 

for the workforce dashboard comes directly from the HR self-service system. 

Datasets have also been collated from information provided by our agency 

provider, Pertemps and Corporate Finance. 

 

2. Workforce datasets referred to in this report are up to and including 31st January  

2021 (Quarter 3). Datasets relating to spend have been validated by finance 

colleagues. 

 

Measurement/performance  
 
3. The total agency spend for 2019/20 was circa £25m. The target reduction for 

2020/21 was £12.5m (50%) by 31st March 2021.  This stretch-target was set 

internally, and it was noted from the outset that achieving the target would be 

challenging.  The target was known to be challenging even before the Covid-19 

pandemic.   

 

4. Trends have been identified throughout the report to demonstrate the 

performance of H&F and to highlight the distance travelled from initial baselines 

as well as the direction of travel. Throughout the report there is a narrative which 

seeks to provide a commentary on the data produced in each area with 

recommendations as to possible management action.  

 

5. The key headlines this quarter are: 

 

a) Total reduction of agency headcount to date from its highest point in Q3 

2019/20 from 531 to 284. A total headcount reduction of 247, representing 

a 47% reduction.  This does not take account of further reductions 

anticipated during the remainder of Q4. 

Quarter 3 

(19/20) 

Quarter 4 

(19/20) 

Quarter 1 

(20/21) 

Quarter 2 

(20/21) 

Quarter 3 

(20/21) 

Quarter 4 

To date 

531 469 415 338 328 284 

 

Page 48



b) We are now averaging £0.250m per week compared to a high point of over 

£0.600m pw in Q3 19/20 which represents a 58% reduction in weekly spend.   

 

c) As of the end of Q3, we are forecasting a spend of around £17.98m by year 

end. This is based on £15.48m spent at the end of February, and an 

average monthly spend based on the last 2 months of £1.25m.  This will 

return a total reduction in spend of around £5.5m. 

 
d) In addition to the £5.5m reduction in Pertemps agency spend, a further £1m 

reduction has been made to ‘off-contract’ agency spend.  ‘Off contract’ 

relates to specialist frameworks which are used for hard to fill specialist and 

senior roles. To date, £0.883m of the agency spend has been directly 

attributed to Covid-19, bringing the total cost reduction for 20/21 to circa 

£7.4m. 

 
e) Additionally, in excess of £1m has been directly attributed to posts directly 

funded (from specific grants/funding such as DSG) which will have a net nil 

impact on our budgeted expenditure. 

 
f) Agency worker assignments of between 7 to 12-month tenure have reduced 

from 140 compared to 38 at the end of February 2021. 

 
g) In November 2020, agency spend was adjusted up by £23,240, resulting in 

a negative impact towards our target but which was required to 

accommodate pay parity arrangements back dated to April 2020.  This 

adjustment was required to ensure that we were compliant with the new 

agency regulations which came into effect from 6 April 2020 entitling all 

temporary agency workers to pay parity with directly hired employees after 

12 continuous calendar weeks in the same role. 

Council establishment 

 
6. Chart 1 gives a summary of the workforce as at the end of February. Workforce 

headcount was 2,149 (2,004 Full Time Equivalent) compared to 1,959 in Q1.   

Chart 2 gives an overview of the breakdown of departmental agency spend to 

date. 

7. It was always accepted that there would need to be some movement from agency 

to permanent or fixed term as the agency reduction programme took effect and 

this is reflective in some of the increase in headcount.  To explain this, prior to 

the introduction of our new recruitment portal, due to difficulties with onboarding 

experienced by managers, there were instances where vacant posts were filled 

with agency staff as opposed to direct employment as it was more effective and 

efficient to do so. 

8. It has been important and necessary to retain specialist skills through the 

onboarding of agency staff and whilst this has had an impact on headcount, the 

costs associated with retention are lower.  It is also important to note that 

Page 49



addressing the high numbers of long-term agency assignments needed to take 

precedence ahead of any wider workforce review.   

Chart 1 : Summary of the workforce as at the end of February 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Chart 2 : Departmental breakdown of agency spend : 20/21 to date 
 

 
 
Overview of the agency reduction programme 
 
9. Our overarching aim was to deliver a 50% annual reduction in agency spend over 

12 months effective from March 2020 bringing us from the top quartile spend to 

the lower quartile of spend across London borough benchmarks.   

 

10. The 50% cost-reduction target was set internally by Transformation, Talent & 

Inclusion (TTI) (formerly People & Talent) and it was accepted from the outset 

that this was a highly ambitious target and that there would be inherent risks.   

 

11. Based on the departmental commitments that were provided leading up to 

November 2020, TTI reported that it was still possible to deliver a reduction in 

spend of £12.5m. However, caution was highlighted in terms of continued 

emerging factors associated with the Covid-19 pandemic and the risk that some 

departments would not be able to deliver their commitments, which has proven 

to be the case.   

 

554,163

1,128,770 1,183,261

1,889,354

2,820,205

3,343,921

5,440,331

FINANCE RESOURCES ENVIRONMENT ECONOMY SOCIAL CARE 
AND PUBIC 

HEALTH

CHILDREN'S 
SERVICES

HOUSING 
REVENUE 
ACCOUNT

Page 50



12. As of the end of Q3, agency spend was at 62% and the target had been missed 

by  12%.   

 
The stretch target has not been met for the following reasons: 

 
➢ There were a small number of Covid related breakouts which required 

whole services to be resourced at short notice for a short period of time to 
ensure critical front-line services could continue to run. 

 
➢ There was an adjustment of £23,240 associated with applying pay parity to 

agency workers which was backdated to April 2019. 
 

➢ There were some delays in movement for some agency staff to fixed term 
contracts which was mainly due to ensuring compliance with right to work 
checks and references. 

 
➢ There were requirements to continue to resource major projects on an 

interim basis such as pensions, civic campus and safer neighbourhoods 
(enforcement).   

 
13. Chart 3 shows the original forecast  at the end of August 2020 which projected 

that we potentially could have met the 50% target. 

 

 
Chart 3 

 

14. Chart 4 shows where the forecast changed since November 2020 and 

projections through to the end of March 2021.   

 

 
Chart 4 

 

Page 51



15. At the PSR PAC on 16 November, it was recorded that forecasts had been 

provided by departmental leads of the proposed reduction in agency usage for 

each of their respective service areas (refer to chart 3) by year end.  The 

forecasts were not met for the reasons given above.  That said, reduction in 

agency spend to date has been significant and is consistent with the Council’s 

Value of Ruthlessly Financially Efficient. 

 

16. In the event that the current rate of spend continues, the projected Pertemps 

agency spend over the whole financial year would be estimated at £17.98m, this 

is based on £15.48m spent to date and an average monthly spend based on the 

last 2 months of £1.25m.  Over the same period, the spend on our directly 

employed workforce is circa £107.7m.   

 
17. If the council can continue the current trajectory, officers are forecasting further 

reductions in spend between now and the end of the year.  When factoring in 

reductions associated with Pertemps, ‘off-contract agency spend’ and Covid 

associated spend, this will deliver a total cost reduction of circa £7.4m by the end 

of March 2021.   

 
18. The Covid-19 pandemic has naturally had an impact on the pace of change as 

the council’s focus has been, and continues to be, primarily on delivering front 

line critical services.  This has had significant implications on the agency 

reduction programme, however, despite everything we are continuing to 

decrease our agency numbers and reduce spend. 

 

19. The reduction of agency headcount from 531 as at October 2019 to 284 as at 

December 2020 and the continuing downward trend provides the council with 

assurance that our agency levels are truly reflective of interim needs. 

 
20. Additionally, this provides assurance that we are using agency staff appropriately 

for short-term and specialist task and finish programmes which is manageable 

and controlled and regularly audited.   

 
21. Culturally, the landscape is changing in terms of agency usage.  At the end of 

February 2020, there were 140 agency workers in assignments of between 7 to 

12-month tenure compared to 38 at the end of February 2020. There will continue 

to be a focus on reducing the length of assignments over 12 months. 

 
22. An internal audit has been planned for early 2021.  The audit will provide 

assurance in terms of the measures in Appendix B and identify whether there 

are any further measures that could be incorporated.  We are also currently 

reviewing the existing processes in order to streamline and automate them. 

 
23. Pertemps have developed a new Power BI database (in collaboration with 

People and Talent) to provide access to datasets to improve monitoring, control 

and reporting of agency usage and assurances that we can accurately report on 

Page 52



the diversity of our temporary workers which aligns with our equality, diversity 

and inclusion agenda. 

 
24. The table in Appendix A is an extract of agency spend across London Councils 

which was published in 19/20 and which was shared with PSR PAC back in 

March 2020.  The benchmark data for 20/21 is not yet available but referring back 

to the benchmark data, allowing for a reduction in spend of £7.4m and based on 

an FTE of 2,004, this would place us just above lowest quartile at £6,660 cost 

per FTE.   

 

25. At the end of this financial year, we are forecasting that our weekly agency spend 

will be at approximately £240,000pw.  If this trend continues we will meet the 

50% target by the end of the next financial year.  Therefore, going forward, the 

resources management board will monitor deviations against the £240,000pw 

with a focus on further reducing agency assignments over 12 months and those 

with daily pay rates over £400 per day, where they do not contribute to major 

programmes which are of a specialist nature and with a fixed term duration.   

 
26. In addition to the continued focus on agency reduction and controls, there are a 

number of key lines of enquiries that are also being explored to deliver further 

workforce efficiencies over a 2-3 year period.   

 

• Voluntary redundancy scheme  

• Reduction of overtime payments  

• Review of  allowances 

• Review of market supplements 

• Review of honorarium and acting up payments  

• Review of spans and layers 

• Removal of PRP schemes (2 remaining and under review) 

  

Page 53



 

Appendix A 

Benchmark data of agency spend across London Councils published in 19/20 

 

 

This table shows the movement in terms of cost reduction against the original 

benchmark data which places us just above the lower quartile.   

 
  

Page 54



Appendix B 
Summary of regular activity  

 

• Monthly ‘check and challenge’ Resource Management Board (RMB) sessions 

with the Senior Leadership Team led by Chief Executive. 

• Detailed agency reduction action plans owned by each SLT member   

• High level agency reduction action plan overseen by the Strategic Head of 

People & Talent 

• People & Talent initiative of ‘deep dive’ workshops with Department 

Management Teams to review all agency posts held monthly led by Lucy 

Robinson, Strategic Resourcing Lead 

• Monitor, control and limit all new agency bookings and extensions in 

partnership with agency provider. 

• Agency Watch - monitors agency assignments over 12 months and over 

£200/per day rate. 

• Renegotiating agency rates in line with salary equivalents in partnership with 

agency provider. 

• Move high cost interims/consultants to lower cost frameworks or apply 

alternative arrangements. 

• Provision of People & Talent strategic advice where alternative resourcing 

arrangements are being investigated. 

• Use People & Talent expertise to reduce executive agency advertising costs 

• Increase use of the apprenticeship levy and other creative resourcing 

solutions – e.g. ‘Earn while you learn’ and ‘workplace degree scheme’  

• Increase ambitions for Get Ahead to ‘grow our own’ talent and reduce churn   

• Progressing integration of agency workers into IBC HR management system 

for improved monitoring and analytics. 

• Regular review of several lines of enquiry 

 

Page 55


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - 28 Jan 2021 (Joint Budget Meeting)

	5 Equality, Diversity and Inclusion matters in H&F
	6 Workforce Equality, Diversity & Inclusion
	7 Workforce Efficiency: Reducing Agency Spend

